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                      Traverse City, Michigan 1 

                      Thursday, September 4, 2008 2 

                      MR. PRATT:  My name is Doug Pratt; I'm the 3 

         director of communications for the Michigan Education 4 

         Association.  I thank all of you for taking the time out 5 

         this afternoon to come and talk about this important issue. 6 

                      We've been doing these hearings all over the state 7 

         and we've come up here to Traverse City and next week to 8 

         Ishpeming because this is often characterized as being an 9 

         urban problem, as being something that Grand Rapids and 10 

         Detroit and Lansing have to deal with.  But the dropout 11 

         statistics that have come out from the State really show 12 

         that this is an issue that we all need to be discussing.  13 

         And there are solutions that are working here in Traverse 14 

         City for your students in this community that can be shared 15 

         elsewhere and be used as a learning experience for the rest 16 

         of the state. 17 

                      With that I want to briefly introduce our 18 

         panelists who are going to be taking testimony today and 19 

         asking some questions.  First, I have Jack Kresnak of 20 

         Michigan's Children, Ed Sarpolus of the Michigan Education 21 

         Association, Dr. Marie Conners-Gilmore of the Traverse Bay Area 22 

         Intermediate School District, and Gary Naeyaert of Michigan's 23 

         Charter Schools.  At this point I'm going to kick it over to 24 

         Jack to read a quick opening statement and then we'll get 25 
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         started. 1 

                      MR. KRESNAK:  Hi, everybody.  Thanks for coming 2 

         today.  Michigan's Children you may know is an independent 3 

         nonpartisan advocacy organization in Lansing.  We don't take 4 

         any government money, so when I ask the legislature to do 5 

         something it's for the kids, it's not for our own nest; not 6 

         feathering our nest.  We do public policy work and community 7 

         advocacy training and we also bring kids to Kid Speak forums 8 

         where they get to talk to policymakers, legislators and 9 

         government officials directly about issues affecting them. 10 

                      You may have heard that there are about 20,000 11 

         Michigan students who drop out of school each year and each 12 

         one of those kids or youth, young people cost taxpayers 13 

         about $127,000 in lost tax revenues and increased costs for 14 

         public health, criminal justice and welfare.  The impact of 15 

         this crisis on society is huge.  Lower incomes for dropouts, 16 

         local communities with fewer well paid employees to support 17 

         local businesses in an economy saddled with a perception 18 

         that we lack qualified employees for prospective jobs.  We 19 

         are here today to act because one dropout is too many.  We 20 

         need a graduation rate of a hundred percent.   21 

                      The dropout crisis is certainly a complicated 22 

         problem.  No one strategy or reform model will work for all 23 

         schools and all students, but we shouldn't back down from 24 

         trying to fix the problem or delay acting because it's hard 25 
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         to solve.  That's why all of us as partners in this effort 1 

         want to hear your stories.  Why do students drop out?  What 2 

         impact has that on your community?  Why do students return 3 

         to school?  What works and, frankly, what doesn't work?   4 

                      We will present your stories and the findings of 5 

         these hearings to political leaders and the public at the 6 

         Michigan Dropout Prevention Leadership Summit on October 7 

         20th in Lansing.  The information we gather through these 8 

         hearings will inform our leaders about how to develop the 9 

         broad-based solutions necessary to graduate more students 10 

         from high school who are ready to work, move on to college 11 

         or other training and be an active participant in our 12 

         economy in society.  So with that I'll have Doug ask people 13 

         up. 14 

                      MR. PRATT:  All right.  Just some of the logistics 15 

         for today.  When you came in on the table outside there were 16 

         index cards to sign up to provide testimony.  I've got four 17 

         of them right now.  I think there are probably a few more of 18 

         them in the room who might be interested in speaking, so 19 

         Katie in the back there has them.  If you'll just raise your 20 

         hand and she can come by and give you a card. 21 

                      We try to keep it to a five-minute time limit, but 22 

         given that we're a bit smaller and more intimate group, if 23 

         you need a little bit more time I don't think that's going 24 

         to be a problem.  We are recording everything here today.  25 
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         We're going to transcribe all this to provide it to the 1 

         legislature, with the intent, again, as Jack said, of 2 

         providing it to them at that summit in October. 3 

                      With that, if you have any written comments, I'm 4 

         happy to take those and we'll add those into the record 5 

         after you're done speaking.  You can head up to this 6 

         microphone here, but apparently some have a couple of 7 

         questions, clarifications, other things they think 8 

         legislature might want to know about.  And we will go 9 

         through until everybody's had a chance to speak.  Okay?  Any 10 

         questions? 11 

                      (No verbal response) 12 

                      MR. PRATT:  Okay.  First up we have Mr. Konrad 13 

         Molter.  Come on down then to this microphone.  Thank you. 14 

                      MR. MOLTER:  I am Konrad Molter and I'm the 15 

         assistant principal at Traverse City West Senior High School 16 

         and I've been working in Traverse City for the past 11 17 

         years.  And last year I was the 12th grade principal and I 18 

         spent a lot of time with kids that are on the fence and 19 

         dropping out.  And in Traverse City we've got a lot of 20 

         layers of interventions and I think that's kind of our key. 21 

                      The one thing that we do is obviously we counsel 22 

         the kids, but personally we take a real interest in each 23 

         one.  Every kid has their own stories and I think even 24 

         though we're a large school we personalize it.  I think 25 
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         that's probably, I would say, one of the most effective 1 

         tools that we have.  If kids aren't successful, they're 2 

         grade -- they're credit deficient, we counsel them, we work 3 

         with the TC High School, its alternative here in Traverse 4 

         City and we work to get them enrolled in there. 5 

                      We've brought in a lot of families.  I've had a 6 

         parent say to me, "This sounds like a no brainer.  My son 7 

         can graduate still in the year 2008."  It may be in November 8 

         but we provide an opportunity, so we really don't send them 9 

         away.  If kids get in trouble we have a school for expelled 10 

         students; it's an off-campus education program.  So we 11 

         really -- we don't let them go and I think that's pretty 12 

         helpful. 13 

                      We've had a one percent dropout rate.  That's not 14 

         good enough; we all know that.  But in a school of -- we had 15 

         tenth through twelfth graders and we had 1500 kids in there, 16 

         one percent; we're -- we can do better but we're pretty 17 

         pleased with the results on there.  I looked at the numbers, 18 

         the names of the kids who dropped out and for various 19 

         reasons and I saw a trend that a lot of them were part of 20 

         our homeless program.  And we have a -- it's called a Step 21 

         Program:  Students Transition Empowering Program and that 22 

         program is pretty helpful.  We have an advocate for them 23 

         that kind of works with them to make up missing work, 24 

         provide them with alternatives, work with teachers, do a lot 25 
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         of tutorials, getting them jobs.  And through our Step 1 

         Program we partner with Michigan Works.  And so we have -- 2 

         that's been very effective with kids with credit deficiency.  3 

         We have actually even sent some kids to Beaver Island for 4 

         credit make-up as well.  So we've been really successful 5 

         with what we have.  6 

                      But the next layer that we've just incorporated 7 

         because we added ninth graders -- we were told that if ninth 8 

         graders had two or more F's in their classes it would be a 9 

         90 percent chance that they may drop out.  So we're 10 

         addressing that as well, so every ninth grader has a mentor, 11 

         upperclassman mentor.  And the Kickoff Program is the 12 

         program that we're using with Lee Lanzo and he's out of 13 

         Indianapolis.  He came up and trained our kids.  And it's 14 

         pretty powerful.  He had said that it takes 70 hours for a 15 

         student to trust an adult and it takes seven minutes for a 16 

         student to trust an upperclassman.  So we have upperclassmen 17 

         watching over the freshmen.  And their  focus -- their whole 18 

         quote is, "Failure is not an option for my freshman." 19 

                      MR. KRESNAK:  Could I ask you a question?  The 20 

         expert you brought up from -- Indianapolis was it? 21 

                      MR. MOLTER:  Yes. 22 

                      MR. KRESNAK:  Did the school district fund that 23 

         or how did you pay for that? 24 

                      MR. MOLTER:  Oh, great question.  Actually, it's a 25 
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         very nominal fee; it's $750.  And every kid is -- we touch 1 

         every kid with this in the ninth grade class.  It was 2 

         actually funded -- we have a grant right now, a small 3 

         learning communities grant.  So we're making our large 4 

         schools into small learning communities and that is actually 5 

         funding that program.  So we're fortunate this year, but 6 

         $750 allocation is pretty nominal.  And you can actually run 7 

         it yourself after they train it.  He says it's very non- 8 

         pressure.  He was a former director of student activities 9 

         with a school of 5-, 6,000 and he said, you know, these kids 10 

         need to be connected.  That's what the whole point is.  So 11 

         the older kids do a better job. 12 

                      MR. SARPOLUS:  Two questions.  One is, is that -- 13 

         does your mentoring expand outside the school system to the 14 

         community involved in your dropout program? 15 

                      MR. MOLTER:  In the mentoring program? 16 

                      MR. SARPOLUS:  Yes. 17 

                      MR. MOLTER:  We try.  I mean, most of it's kept 18 

         in-house.  I mean, we really -- we haven't tapped into a lot 19 

         of that.  It's been a little more difficult.  What we do 20 

         with the community is we actually have a noon activity 21 

         program.  They come in and work with our kids during the day 22 

         and then make connections with them, but our mentoring is 23 

         really in-house for the most part. 24 

                      MR. SARPOLUS:  The other thing is, is because  25 
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         the -- you do have a low dropout rate, but one thing we 1 

         found around the state that one out of five dropouts are 2 

         either gifted or A students.  How are you dealing with those 3 

         more gifted?  It's not really an issue of keeping the grades 4 

         as just keeping the interest.  What are you doing with 5 

         those? 6 

                      MR. MOLTER:  We have a lot of dual enrollment.  I 7 

         think Mary Beth Stein is right here, she knows that.  She 8 

         sees all the papers come across.  That's probably our 9 

         biggest thing is that we open up our doors and we work with 10 

         the NMC and the kids take classes over there.  So we  11 

         excel -- a lot of kids will get college credit and high 12 

         school credit. 13 

                      MR. SARPOLUS:  Okay.  Thank you. 14 

                      MR. NAEYAERT:  I'm sorry.  The consultant from 15 

         Indianapolis or Indiana was named who? 16 

                      MR. MOLTER:  Lee Lanzo.  He's the founder of the 17 

         program. 18 

                      MR. NAEYAERT:  And is that mentoring program -- is 19 

         it one-to-one ratio?  I mean, one upper classman -- 20 

                      MR. MOLTER:  Four to one. 21 

                      PANEL MEMBER:  Four.  Which -- 22 

                      MR. MOLTER:  Four students, four freshman to one 23 

         upper classman.  And then currently since we have sophomores 24 

         coming in we're running a program which is one to one with 25 
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         our at-risk students. 1 

                      MR. NAEYAERT:  So all freshman, four freshman to 2 

         one upper classman? 3 

                      MR. MOLTER:  Correct. 4 

                      MR. NAEYAERT:  Not the ones that are having -- had 5 

         failed any classes? 6 

                      MR. MOLTER:  No. 7 

                      MR. NAEYAERT:  Just everybody. 8 

                      MR. MOLTER:  Everybody.  Everyone -- 9 

                      MR. NAEYAERT:  Every sophomore is one to one with 10 

         at-risk? 11 

                      MR. MOLTER:  With at-risk, yeah. 12 

                      MR. NAEYAERT:  Is this -- and how long have you 13 

         done that? 14 

                      MR. MOLTER:  Well, this is our first year.  We had 15 

         -- in the past we've had just sophomores through seniors, 16 

         and so the transition was much easier because we had the 17 

         kids housed in the freshman building.  And so we kind of 18 

         came down and did a lot of, you know, coddling, nurturing 19 

         along the way.  This year we brought freshmen and sophomores 20 

         up, so 50 percent of our population is brand new.  So at the 21 

         end of this year I'm going to be very interested in seeing 22 

         our numbers and if there's -- you know, in terms of our 23 

         ninth grade scores and our tenth grade at-risk scores in 24 

         terms of failures.  I believe they'll go down and if they do 25 
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         go down I definitely want to share this program with other 1 

         people.  We're piloting it right now.  And it's pretty 2 

         positive.   3 

                      Brighton High School is where I found the program 4 

         and I heard that they had a wonderful transition program.  5 

         So the Kick Off Program is koprogram.com; www.koprogram.com 6 

         is the resource. 7 

                      MR. NAEYAERT:  Well, you're to be commended for 8 

         having such a abysmally low, I mean, dropout rate.  I mean, 9 

         that's the lowest rate I think we've heard from any 10 

         presenter at any of the hearings at one percent. 11 

                      MR. MOLTER:  Well, we're -- we care a lot about 12 

         our kids.  And again, I had a kid today -- he is going 13 

         through Michigan Works to finish up with work experience and 14 

         we're going to get him graduated.  And we just -- they don't 15 

         leave our doors. Once a Titan, always a Titan. 16 

                      MR. NAEYAERT:  Do you know how well last year's 17 

         freshmen did in terms of passing Algebra I, which is 18 

         something we've been hearing a lot about with the new merit 19 

         curriculum? 20 

                      MR. MOLTER:  Yeah.  I don't have that.  Now, we 21 

         just transitioned to trimesters, so our solution to that is 22 

         if they're failing they're going to retake it.  So that's 23 

         kind of a nice safety net.  We're going to see how that 24 

         runs. 25 
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                      MR. NAEYAERT:  But you don't have a percentage for 1 

         last year's freshmen -- 2 

                      MR. MOLTER:  I don't. 3 

                      MR. NAEYAERT:  -- as to how they did? 4 

                      MR. MOLTER:  I don't have that with me.  Sorry. 5 

                      MR. PRATT:  All right.  Thank you. 6 

                      MR. MOLTER:  Thank you. 7 

                      MR. PRATT:  Next up.  If you hold up your  cards - 8 

         - I know a couple of you grabbed one to fill out. Katie can 9 

         swing by snag them from you.  But next up we have Cameron 10 

         Owens. 11 

                      MR. OWENS:  Good afternoon.  My name is Cameron 12 

         Owens.  I'm the school leader at Traverse City College 13 

         Preparatory Academy.  I was invited here yesterday 14 

         afternoon.  I didn't get a lot of detail, but we're the 15 

         newest school in town, a public school academy that is very 16 

         small in relation, so -- and, Mr. Molter, I need to talk to 17 

         you at some point, I believe.  Eh? 18 

                      Our kind of a theme is with the research that 19 

         we're small, relational.  Right now we have approximately a 20 

         hundred students as we kind of build and grow.  What we feel 21 

         is real, real important and our theme, which I think is 22 

         research driven, is that you need a small, very connected 23 

         school situation in the learning community.  So our whole 24 

         focus is involvement with kids, with staff, with 25 
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         administration, with parents and the community.  What I 1 

         believe is that if students are not somehow connected in 2 

         their school with the academics, with a teacher, with 3 

         extracurriculars you're going to lose them; eventually 4 

         you're going to lose them.  So that's not the goal.   5 

                      We had one graduate last year so we have a hundred 6 

         percent graduation rate and a zero percent dropout rate.  7 

         Hurray for us.  And we want to continue that.  And 8 

         certainly, I would never be critical of the traditional 9 

         schools in town.  They're exceptional and they do great 10 

         things, but they are large.  And what we're about -- and I 11 

         do believe that maybe the majority of those kids in this 12 

         fine community can negotiate that large system and do very 13 

         well.  Right?  But we also think that there's a percentage 14 

         in the demographic of students that for various reasons 15 

         demeanor wise, disposition or, you know, or background 16 

         issues that may not be able to do that.  So we're about 17 

         coming into a school situation, a smaller context, less 18 

         congestion and making those relationships and so forth.   19 

                      This week, you know, began the school for all the 20 

         schools in the area.  We've had a number of transfers.  And 21 

         once again I'm not being critical; it's just reality.  Some 22 

         kids just need something smaller.  I had a young man that 23 

         came from one of the schools today, enrolled today after a 24 

         visit.  And we try to exhibit that kind of connection, that 25 
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         kind of relational aspect by having some real one-on-one 1 

         dialog; seeing if the school's mission relates to the needs 2 

         of the kid and the family.  So we think that's just very, 3 

         very critical. 4 

                      I also believe in my years of experience and so 5 

         forth downstate and now currently here that that aspect of 6 

         education is key.  We know that the academics and the rigor 7 

         and the relevance is a strong theme today.  However, we have 8 

         an expectation at TC Prep that you complete two classes in 9 

         leadership:  character and development, and then team 10 

         leadership; two research-driven curriculums that promote 11 

         that self concept, help students gain that identity of who 12 

         they are, what they're becoming and garner strength and 13 

         understanding of their weaknesses so that they can proclaim 14 

         themselves, have that self identity, and then consequently 15 

         or subsequently make good decisions when it comes that time 16 

         -- the peer pressure and so forth.   17 

                      So the affect of education, you know, which was 18 

         probably, you know, tantamount in some decades ago, we feel 19 

         it's really, really critical.  And we develop that, we hone 20 

         it.  We acculturate across the school context, with that 21 

         leadership mantra, leadership theme and the values.  And we 22 

         just press these huge during orientation, during daily 23 

         interaction of responsibility, respect, genuine care and 24 

         concern.  And a huge part of that is kids have got to feel 25 
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         emotionally safe; not just physically safe in your school 1 

         but they've got to feel emotionally safe that they can walk 2 

         across that hallway, go into a class and be emotionally 3 

         safe; that they'll be accepted.   And we just pound that.  4 

         We pound it and we're going to keep pounding that.  And then 5 

         you do those three things and you start developing trust 6 

         with yourself, with your school staff, your parents, your 7 

         community.  So that's just a huge part of what we're about 8 

         as well.  And we have our mission, we know our theme, we 9 

         know what we're about, and we just are relentless with it. 10 

                      MR. SARPOLUS:  In your program do you have -- on 11 

         the teacher relationship, is that stays with -- the one 12 

         teacher with that student for the whole semester or for 13 

         three years, two years?  What is your model with the 14 

         teacher/student -- 15 

                      MR. OWENS:  Well, you know, actually because we're 16 

         so small -- and I'm not a very formal guy.  Right?  I kind 17 

         of do things, I wing things.  I have a kind of visceral 18 

         intuitive thing, so we're small.  But we have that strong, 19 

         strong rapport relationship with all our staff and kids and 20 

         they'll traverse the curriculum.  I also think that, you 21 

         know, we've kind of worked a unique schedule that has a 22 

         college preparation and a college theme with a block 23 

         schedule in that students only have four classes at a time.  24 

         They have 90 minutes with a mantra of half the class load, 25 



 17

         double the time, but that allows, you know, real 1 

         concentrated effort in school, a longer contact day with the 2 

         staff and then start to develop relationships. 3 

                      We have a young man that came from one of the 4 

         strong schools in town but has such a strong relationship 5 

         with his math teacher.  And that's what we're just -- we're 6 

         talking about relationships all the time.  He had the option 7 

         and we're going to mandate him to go to -- in that dual 8 

         enrollment next semester at NMC.  But he has such strong 9 

         trust with his math teacher that he's taken two years now, 10 

         that he just -- he wanted to stay with Mr. Stivani and work 11 

         that out. 12 

                      So it is and it's critical as they move along.  13 

         And really for that four-year graduation expectation of 14 

         math, each year he will have Mr. Stivani.  Because we're not 15 

         going to ever grow beyond a couple hundred students.  And 16 

         the research is very clear about small relational high 17 

         school particularly affecting graduation rates and dropout 18 

         rates. 19 

                      MR. SARPOLUS:  Have you experienced a lot of 20 

         Traverse (inaudible) academies have found that you're going 21 

         to try to grow south to like start the preliminary program, 22 

         or are you just going to stick with the high school model? 23 

                      MR. OWENS:  Well, currently we're authorized 24 

         through Bay Mills Community College; we're 9 through 12.  25 
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         And I don't think at this point -- we want to establish 1 

         ourselves first in our mission as a 9 through 12 high school 2 

         as college prep.  Eventually we -- I'm not saying we're not 3 

         going to look at it, but it would be good to have a junior 4 

         high where we can work with those students at that younger 5 

         level to get them in the college, you know, preparation 6 

         frame of mind.  So it could possibly happen. 7 

                      MR. KRESNAK:  Mr. Owens, I'm a little unclear on 8 

         the population of the students you get.  Are they struggling 9 

         students or are they gifted students that are going to go to 10 

         college, or -- 11 

                      MR. OWENS:  That's a good question and the way we 12 

         look at it is the mission is the mission; we're college 13 

         preparation.  We're going to give all students an 14 

         opportunity to be -- as I kind of put it:  "You may not on 15 

         that same page initially but at least you'd better be in the 16 

         same book."  We have the assumption no matter where you've 17 

         come that you're going to have a college prep mind set and 18 

         work toward that. 19 

                      So the demographic is we have -- well, initially 20 

         last summer we had contact with -- interestingly 35 percent 21 

         of our student base are home schoolers.  And they come to us 22 

         with different levels of achievement but generally are 23 

         strong character kids from good families.  And then as a 24 

         first-year school we also have that population, a minority 25 
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         population, that is at risk.  Right?  Basically my career 1 

         from 24 until just about a year ago has been with at-risk 2 

         and adjudicated population, working with Holy Cross Children 3 

         Services through the years.  So I like that dynamic.   4 

                      And what we -- and the upside of having a small 5 

         school that didn't meet our financial needs because of the 6 

         student count, on the upside is that we were able to take a 7 

         student body of 55 kids last year and really develop that 8 

         student body and just hammer the values what we believe in. 9 

         And if you do it enough and you're consistent enough and 10 

         kids start to believe in that -- we had one student body.  11 

         And it's just real evident.  And that leadership came this 12 

         fall with our new students are impressing upon that issue of 13 

         values.  And it's just -- I just think it's critical.  I 14 

         really do.  Our kids just feel emotionally safe and when you 15 

         have that you can have students that stand up and do 16 

         speeches, which they may have not have done in a larger 17 

         school situation. 18 

                      And the opportunity for growth is amazing.  So 19 

         we'll stay small.  And we'll take at-risk kids where we have 20 

         a preponderance and we'll take any student that comes to the 21 

         fold with that mission statement.  The mission won't change 22 

         -- right? -- and the students will have to get on board with 23 

         that with time. 24 

                      MR. NAEYAERT:  It might help -- I mean, because I 25 
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         know very little about the school, Cameron.  Is it -- you're 1 

         9-12 but last year did you have 55 students in all four 2 

         grades? 3 

                      MR. OWENS:  Yes. 4 

                      MR. NAEYAERT:  But only one senior? 5 

                      MR. OWENS:  One senior. 6 

                      MR. NAEYAERT:  And then this year you have a 7 

         hundred students? 8 

                      MR. OWENS:  Yeah, we've built the population. 9 

                      MR. NAEYAERT:  Okay.  In the four grades? 10 

                      MR. OWENS:  Yes. 11 

                      MR. NAEYAERT:  Okay.  Total? 12 

                      MR. OWENS:  Yes. 13 

                      MR. NAEYAERT:  And your plan would be in order to 14 

         keep the model that you have, you could top out at --  15 

         what? -- 200? 16 

                      MR. OWENS:  Two hundred at max. 17 

                      MR. NAEYAERT:  Over the four grades? 18 

                      MR. OWENS:  Over the four grades. 19 

                      MR. NAEYAERT:  Okay.  So how many seniors do you 20 

         have this year? 21 

                      MR. OWENS:  I think we have 13 returning juniors 22 

         from last year that took the MME and are just standout 23 

         students, and I think we've added maybe another ten.  And we 24 

         really thought that we may have more influence from the 25 
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         preponderance of the ninth graders with the reconfiguration 1 

         of the traditional schools, but it's been pretty evenly 2 

         paced.  And we also attract from not just TC proper but from 3 

         the area, as far away as Manton, Kalkaska, Northport. And so 4 

         that requires a, you know, corroboration, collaboration and 5 

         cooperation with our parents and car pools and so forth.  6 

         But we're kind of excited about things. 7 

                      MR. SARPOLUS:  So students are sharing grades? 8 

                      MR. OWENS:  Yes. 9 

                      MR. SARPOLUS:  You have students twelfth grade, 10 

         ninth grade in the same classes? 11 

                      MR. OWENS:  No -- yeah.  The curriculum is the 12 

         curriculum, but we had last year some ELA ninth and tenth 13 

         and mixing classes that are separated -- obviously the 14 

         curriculum was different but it affected their education. 15 

                      MR. PRATT:  Thank you, Mr. Owens. 16 

                      DR. CONNERS-GILMORE:  One question. 17 

                      MR. PRATT:  Oh, I'm sorry. 18 

                      DR. CONNERS-GILMORE:  Are you able to -- are you 19 

         able to meet all the course requirements with such a small 20 

         school and -- 21 

                      MR. OWENS:  That's a challenge. 22 

                      DR. CONNERS-GILMORE:  -- and with a subsequent 23 

         small staff? 24 

                      MR. OWENS:  And absolutely, because we know that 25 
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         the graduation requirements from last year for the class of 1 

         2011 and this year's freshmen have that requirement, so it 2 

         necessitates a certain amount of creativity.  One example is 3 

         we decided with the foreign language -- and we understand 4 

         the -- that issue with the graduation requirements, but 5 

         we're going to do some things online.  And I'm not -- I'm 6 

         old school; I'm a legal-pad-and-a-pencil type of guy, but -- 7 

         and see technology as augmentation and support of the 8 

         education process. 9 

                      But we're also able to go online with a local 10 

         business -- we like to do that -- and provide four years of 11 

         French, four years of -- well, four years of English too.  12 

         But four years of Espanole, three years of German and one 13 

         Mandarin Chinese all online.  So you get that online 14 

         experience but also you can afford the foreign language.  So 15 

         it necessitates creativity when you have a smaller school 16 

         situation. 17 

                      MR. PRATT:  Good.  Thank you. 18 

                      MR. OWENS:  I appreciate it.  Thank you. 19 

                      MR. PRATT:  Next up we have Marvin NORDEEN.  And 20 

         if anybody has any cards to submit I can snag them.  If you 21 

         came in late there are cards outside to register to testify. 22 

                      MR. NORDEEN:  Hi, Marv NORDEEN; I'm a school 23 

         psychologist and behavior consultant, and my exposure to the 24 

         dropout rate obviously is many of the students that I 25 
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         potentially could work with may or have in the past dropped 1 

         out and are attempting to return to school and trying to 2 

         figure out how to make that work.  So I've done a lot of 3 

         research on my own, looking at numbers of students.  Also 4 

         looking at -- you know, as part of the National Association 5 

         of School Psychologists there's plenty of research out there 6 

         that they have conducted on -- there's some real nice 7 

         information.  A lot of the stuff that I'm -- I'm not going 8 

         to tell you a whole lot of stuff, but what I am going to 9 

         tell you I don't think is new stuff. 10 

                      You know, NASP as been telling us for years there 11 

         are a few factors and one primary one is one year -- when 12 

         students separate themselves by about approximately one 13 

         grade level from their age mates the likelihood of dropout 14 

         rate is drastically -- I've got a quote from -- this one 15 

         came out of Clemson University out of the -- what is it 16 

         called? -- the National Dropout Prevention Center.  A real 17 

         nice quote that really kind of summarized a lot of 18 

         information, a lot of stuff for me.  "Children of low SES 19 

         status are particularly at risk and if you add low 20 

         achievement, poor attendance and being too old for the grade 21 

         the risk increases dramatically and a student will not 22 

         likely graduate."  And the statement is concluded by saying 23 

         you can take those factors to the bank.  Basically saying, 24 

         if you've got all four of those factors these kids have no 25 
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         chance.  So when you look at it, you look at academics.  1 

         Well, we're constantly trying to improve the students' 2 

         ability to improve their academics.   3 

                      We can't have a whole lot of impact on the SES 4 

         right inside the school system.  It is what it is.  We can 5 

         try and stimulate some stuff in the communities, but there 6 

         isn't a whole lot we can do with that.  We can have impact 7 

         on seat time, whether or not the child is in school, in 8 

         seat, and we can have impact on whether or not the child is 9 

         with his age mates.  And those two things -- that some of 10 

         our schools are good at this and some of our schools are not 11 

         as good at that.  But those are the two things in my role 12 

         that I can try and have influence over to try and improve 13 

         this dropout rate that I know for years and years and years 14 

         the research has told us those are profound factors in 15 

         dropout. 16 

                      PANEL MEMBER:  Can you read those again so I can 17 

         write them down? 18 

                      MR. NORDEEN:  Sure.  I can even leave -- I can 19 

         leave you with a copy if you want.  But the quote goes:  20 

                      "Children of low SES are -- socioeconomic status 21 

               are particularly at risk for dropout.  If you add low 22 

               achievement, poor attendance and being too old for the 23 

               grade the risk increases dramatically and the student 24 

               will not likely graduate.  You can take those four 25 
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               factors to the bank."   1 

         And again, it comes out of the National Dropout Prevention 2 

         Center out of Clemson University.   3 

                      They talk a lot about the disconnect between an 4 

         individual student and their school community and, therefore 5 

         -- and then it also talks about it starts at an early age.  6 

         People often want to think about dropout starting in the 7 

         high school and in reality they're not. This pattern starts 8 

         out real young.  So if we're going to have an impact on it 9 

         we've got to start not just at the high school level but 10 

         we've got to get better at starting at kindergarten and on 11 

         up. 12 

                      We've got to get better about -- instead of when a 13 

         child has a disciplinary problem or a behavioral problem, 14 

         instead of just sending the child out of school and 15 

         decreasing that seat time find ways to deal with the 16 

         behavior in school.  We need to look more at positive 17 

         behavior supports rather than just simply consequential 18 

         actions to try and improve the kids' behavior.  I guess 19 

         that's all I have. 20 

                      MR. PRATT:  Any questions? 21 

                      MR. NAEYAERT:  On the age issue.  So a separation 22 

         by one year not a big factor, but it's that second year or 23 

         more? 24 

                      MR. NORDEEN:  Well, no, there are -- 25 
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                      MR. NAEYAERT:  Or is the one year -- 1 

                      MR. NORDEEN:  The studies are pretty clear that 2 

         when it hits the one-year mark it's significant.  Now, this 3 

         study was real interesting to me in that it looked at it a 4 

         little bit differently.  In the past most of those studies 5 

         looked at it -- studies you get out of NASP, the school 6 

         psych organization, they talk about retention and if you 7 

         retain a child, A, it increases drastically likelihood that 8 

         a child will drop out.  This study didn't just talk about 9 

         retention; they talked about in general if a child is one 10 

         year older than the rest of the kids in their class, your 11 

         dropout rate is higher.  If you retain by two years you 12 

         almost multiply that dropout -- the likelihood of dropout by 13 

         twice.  So it really takes a next leap when you hit two 14 

         years, but all it takes is the first year to make a 15 

         significant change.  So when we're talking about these four 16 

         factors they're saying one year off of their classmates.   17 

                      MR. SARPOLUS:  Now, that one year, is that the 18 

         result of failure or staying behind?  Because a lot of 19 

         parents hold their kids back one year due to emotional 20 

         reasons at kindergarten.  So holding them back that way 21 

         emotionally is bad? 22 

                      MR. NORDEEN:  There's a whole bunch of stuff out 23 

         there that they've got -- they group together in this study 24 

         that I just quoted.  Like I said, in the past most of the 25 
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         studies I looked at said they were just talking about 1 

         retention due to academic failure, social inability to 2 

         maintain with their peers.  This study grouped it all 3 

         together.  So I -- you know, I'm not defending the study; 4 

         I'm saying this is what they are reporting.  I find it 5 

         interesting.  I would really like to go out and kind of 6 

         ferret that apart even more.  But no, they didn't separate 7 

         those issues apart. 8 

                      MR. SARPOLUS:  Yeah.  Because there's a lot of 9 

         discussion -- and even my own kids, we held them back one 10 

         year at kindergarten because we actually saw their grades 11 

         jump because we held them back.  So this would seem to go 12 

         counter to what a lot of schools at least who are downstate 13 

         are doing with kids. 14 

                      MR. NORDEEN:  There's a huge -- what's really 15 

         interesting is that research says there's an increase in 16 

         retention levels, an increase in the number of times we're 17 

         retaining kids, and all the research -- the long-term 18 

         studies, not the ones that look at one, two or three years 19 

         after retention, but the studies that look at retention 20 

         based on 12 years, K-12, it's saying that the impact or the 21 

         positive impact from the retention is moderated farther out 22 

         from when the retention date occurs. 23 

                      So the first and second year you get a real 24 

         profound, nice increase, nice improvement; by the second and 25 
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         third year it's moderated, it's attenuated, it gets less and 1 

         less.  Now, they do say there are some specific reasons.  2 

         You know, when you have a child who's been out because he -- 3 

         you know, he spent six weeks out because of an appendix and 4 

         -- you know, yes, he missed critical amount of school time 5 

         and that's a different story.  But when they're talking 6 

         about many of the traditional retentions, that's what NASP 7 

         will always talk about with -- 8 

                      And it's contrary to our -- what -- our instincts 9 

         oftentimes, what we really believe should be happening.  10 

         Because first off, we get that immediately result, that 11 

         immediate impact.  It looks, "Wow.  This guy was failing 12 

         last year and this year he's our shooting star."  And the 13 

         next year after he's still pretty decent, he's still pretty 14 

         bright, and then that third year all of a sudden it trails 15 

         off.  But that's contrary to what the research says.  It 16 

         says retentions are not such a wonderful thing. 17 

                      MR. NAEYAERT:  I want to clarify this too, because 18 

         what Ed says is very interesting.  Is it a question of these 19 

         kids of being older because -- older than their peers 20 

         because they have been either -- they have failed or been 21 

         held back or something along the way?  Is it not based on 22 

         whether their chronological age is nine months older than 23 

         someone else and they might have started kindergarten at an 24 

         older six than a younger six?  I mean, I think  that --  25 



 29

                      MR. NORDEEN:  That's what it is, yes. 1 

                      MR. NAEYAERT:  -- it's a separate question. 2 

                      MR. NORDEEN:  Correct. 3 

                      MR. NAEYAERT:  But whether you're a year off from 4 

         your peers because there was something in the path that 5 

         stopped you or held you back -- 6 

                      MR. NORDEEN:  Again, according to this study it's 7 

         just simply saying whether or not you're a year off from 8 

         your classmates. 9 

                      MR. NAEYAERT:  A year off chronologically just -- 10 

                      MR. NORDEEN:  One chronicle, one calendar year.  11 

         If I'm in a fourth grade class and I am -- what? -- nine 12 

         years old -- or ten years old and the rest of my classmates 13 

         are nine years old it says the risk of dropout is 14 

         significantly higher.  Now, it's not saying that all kids 15 

         will; it's saying if you take one and then you add on top of 16 

         that, that they've got a low SES and you add on top of that, 17 

         that you may not have a whole lot of seat time, whether it 18 

         be due to absences for sickness, due to absences because 19 

         behavior is increasing and we're suspending the kid on a 20 

         frequent basis.  You know, when you put them all together, 21 

         yeah, then that one risk factor that we threw in there -- we 22 

         voluntarily threw in the retention, now it's a problem. 23 

                      MR. SARPOLUS:  It's amazing, because a lot of 24 

         schools downstate -- I mean, they encourage parents to 25 
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         evaluate the emotion maturity of their kid in kindergarten, 1 

         and so this would go counter to everything that's going on. 2 

                      MR. NORDEEN:  Yes. 3 

                      MR. NAEYAERT:  I'm still not sure I believe that 4 

         what he's saying is it isn't based on whether you -- when 5 

         you start or whether you've not kept up with the pace of the 6 

         ones that you started with. 7 

                      MR. NORDEEN:  Correct; right.  I encourage you to 8 

         check out the NASP website.  NASP has a position  9 

         statement -- as a matter of fact I've probably got a copy of 10 

         it with me -- on retention and, again, talking about that 11 

         one-year gap in there.  12 

                      MR. KRESNAK:  I'm interested in your opinion on 13 

         zero tolerance policies regarding kids who are assaulted in 14 

         school and holding them back.  What's your opinion on that? 15 

                      MR. NORDEEN:  I don't know.  I've got some -- I'm 16 

         not going to jump into too much here.  I feel very strongly 17 

         about that; holding them back, period, at all, because all 18 

         the research I've found says that's not the answer.  It also 19 

         means -- it doesn't mean that we don't do anything.  There 20 

         are some ways of dealing with that, but simply holding them 21 

         back isn't necessarily the right way. 22 

                      This also flies in the face of this push to  23 

         avoid -- you know, in publicity right now -- in the media 24 

         right now they're talking about, "We've got to stop doing 25 
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         this social promotion.  We're just pushing them on because 1 

         the rest of their class is going on."  Well, part of  that - 2 

         - as Marie and I talked a little while ago, part of that 3 

         we're still restricted by this concept of K-12.  You know, 4 

         and colleges are moving away from simply a four-year 5 

         curriculum and we get the information in there.  But when 6 

         we're trying to force our kids back into this K-12 as a 7 

         grade by grade by grade rather than mastery orientation, it 8 

         makes it difficult. 9 

                      But no, I don't think that holding the kid back 10 

         for any reason is going to -- my biggest fear is that when 11 

         you compound it with these other risk factors -- and these 12 

         are just four of the big ones; there's 21 risk factors they 13 

         talk about in the study -- it's just -- you're adding one 14 

         monstrous variable that says there's a good chance this 15 

         kid's going to drop out. 16 

                      PANEL MEMBER:  Thank you very much. 17 

                      MR. NORDEEN:  Yup. 18 

                      MR. PRATT:  Any other questions?  19 

                      (No verbal response) 20 

                      MR. PRATT:  Good.  Okay.  Thank you.  Next up we 21 

         have Michael Rutledge. 22 

                      MR. RUTLEDGE:  Would it be acceptable if I stayed. 23 

         I have some movement issues obviously. 24 

                      MR. PRATT:  I can bring you the microphone; that's 25 
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         -- 1 

                      MR. RUTLEDGE:  Oh, yes. 2 

                      MR. PRATT:  The only reason we have to do it is 3 

         because we're recording it, so -- 4 

                      MR. RUTLEDGE:  I can't stand. 5 

                      MR. PRATT:  No; not a problem.  There we go. 6 

                      MR. RUTLEDGE:  All right.  You finally have a 7 

         humble teacher.  I am the history teacher at Traverse City 8 

         College Prepare Academy, which makes me the chair of the 9 

         history department.  I like to call myself that.  So I think 10 

         what I'd like to do is maybe provide some anecdotal 11 

         narratives about what I do as a teacher and maybe some 12 

         observations I've made of some of my colleagues.  And then 13 

         the nature of this panel, I have a suggestion I'd like to 14 

         table and I'll do that last. 15 

                      As a teacher though in order -- we have to keep 16 

         the students' interest.  This is the work that's going on in 17 

         the trenches.  All the administrators, psychologists; they 18 

         have a very important job, but if the kids aren't interested 19 

         in coming to school they're simply not going to come to 20 

         school.  So as teachers we have to be very creative, 21 

         innovative and bold.  We can't be afraid to do things.  And 22 

         we have to step outside of that structure that we're given 23 

         in the teacher education program and do things that are 24 

         going to keep the children's interest, the students' 25 
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         interest. 1 

                      Some of the things that I do and that we do at our 2 

         school -- I teach history.  When I teach the Roman unit, 3 

         well, I come to school in a toga and the students come to 4 

         school in a toga.  I have a Roman helmet, a centurion's 5 

         helmet.  We have Roman day and we eat olive oil and bread 6 

         and we learn about Rome that way.  Now, that's not anything 7 

         new; I'm not reinventing the wheel with things like that.  8 

         But not a lot of teachers are willing to do things like that 9 

         for many reasons. 10 

                      When I teach about the First World War we go out 11 

         and dig a trench.  We don't learn about trench warfare; we 12 

         go out and dig a trench.  A surprising popular activity, by 13 

         the way.  And this -- what this allows -- it makes the 14 

         students interested, but we immediately tap into multiple 15 

         intelligence as -- amongst the students without even 16 

         consciously doing that.  If we vary and we differentiate our 17 

         classroom you don't have to actively try to find out what 18 

         the multiple intelligences are; you do them all the time.  19 

         And in my experience the kids come to school, they look 20 

         forward to these things and they show up.  Obviously that's 21 

         not always the case, but more of them do; less absenteeism.  22 

                      We also have to provide relevance and rigor in the 23 

         classroom.  I need to be able as a history teacher to make 24 

         those lessons -- or tell the students, "How is this going to 25 
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         make you more money as an adult?  I mean, we are Americans; 1 

         that's the bottom line.  You know, "What is learning about 2 

         the Roman legions going to do for you to make you more 3 

         money?"  And that's a tricky thing.  That's not easy, but it 4 

         can be done and it has to be done every day.  We have to 5 

         tell -- enforce this with the students. "You're here because 6 

         this is going to make you a better adult, a more productive 7 

         citizen and you're going to make more money" and that's the 8 

         bottom line.  And myself, my colleagues and most teachers 9 

         that I see do that on a daily basis.   10 

                      And then as Mr. Owens talked about -- but my -- 11 

         and it has to be in every school.  We have to develop 12 

         relationships with the students.  The teachers have to be 13 

         the role models.  They see us more than they see their 14 

         parents.  So we -- I don't think that's a mystery really.  15 

         They spend more time with us than they do their parent, so 16 

         we have to be role models.  We can't take the place of the 17 

         parents unfortunately in certain areas -- not so much in 18 

         Traverse City, but that's the case; teachers do take the 19 

         place of the parents.  But we have to be the role models.  20 

         We have to provide the examples for them.  What have we done 21 

         in our lives that they can go out and use as an example? 22 

                      And that leads me to my final thing.  It's 23 

         teachers; how do we get better teachers?  Now, recruiter 24 

         teachers -- Michigan has -- and I know they have a big 25 
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         problem.  We train the best teachers for the rest of the 1 

         country.  They leave.  And low pay for teachers isn't 2 

         something that's unique to Michigan, but, you know, maybe we 3 

         could pay the teachers a little bit better.  I had a unique 4 

         situation.  I started teaching about three years ago, but 5 

         it's a second career.  I have a pension that I collect, so 6 

         lower beginning teaching pay is not an issue for me.  I do 7 

         what I do because I love to do it.  But that -- this is my 8 

         suggestion.   9 

                      I came from a program called The Troops to 10 

         Teachers.  I'm a retired United States Army non-commissioned 11 

         officer.  I enrolled in The Troops to Teachers Program 12 

         before I retired from the Army.  It's a Department of 13 

         Defense Program nationwide.  And I can give you -- Dr. Dave 14 

         Ratajik has an office in Lansing and he does the placement 15 

         for Michigan and Indiana.  And there is lots of us out here 16 

         that are looking for jobs.  And the level of experience you 17 

         get and the ability for these men and women that are in this 18 

         program to accept jobs that might not pay as much for a 24- 19 

         year-old coming out of college who's looking for money to 20 

         pay off debts or whatever is there.  So that's something 21 

         that maybe other school districts can look into.  The 22 

         program doesn't get a lot of publicity.  But there is a big 23 

         pool of certified teachers around the country.   24 

                      And now within the last 18 months they've expanded 25 
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         to Spouses to Teachers; spouses of military people 1 

         transitioning.  It's not just retirees.  There's, I think, 2 

         six years active duty is the requirement to get into the 3 

         program.  But spouses of these people that are certified 4 

         teachers.  The program does help retiring and transitioning 5 

         soldiers get certified, but you can't get into the program 6 

         proper until you're a certified teacher.  And I see that 7 

         Traverse City College Preparatory has seven teachers, two of 8 

         us are from the Troops to Teachers Program and it makes a 9 

         big difference.  Thank you. 10 

                      MR. PRATT:  Any questions? 11 

                      (No verbal response) 12 

                      MR. PRATT:  Okay.  Thank you.  Okay.  Next -- 13 

                      MR. SARPOLUS:  One quick question.  You had -- 14 

         Cameron mentioned the 90-minute classes or the extended 15 

         classes.  What is your after school extracurricular type 16 

         thing?  What do you do then to keep kids interested after 17 

         school?  Is there anything else that you are doing? 18 

                      MR. RUTLEDGE:  Oh, yes.  We have -- well, last year - 19 

         - obviously, the first year of our school -- we had a 20 

         basketball team, boys basketball team and a recreational ski 21 

         club.  This year we -- currently girls volleyball team, a 22 

         cross country team, the boys basketball team is beginning, 23 

         the ski club is in motion again.  Obviously, you have to 24 

         wait for the weather.  We will also have a cooperative ski 25 
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         racing team with Elk Rapids High School and a cooperative 1 

         hockey team with three other small schools.  So there's a 2 

         lot of opportunity there for the kids.   3 

                      Now our student body right now as it exists, they 4 

         love sports, but, you know, we're not a big sport 5 

         powerhouse.  Many of the students in our school are there 6 

         for academics and we all -- and I have a sports background 7 

         so I apologize to Ms. Beauchamp.  We have a drama program 8 

         and some other things.  And in fact I was in my first 9 

         Shakespeare production this summer through that.  And none 10 

         of the students came to see me unfortunately because it was 11 

         summer, but that was a lot of fun.  So we do have other 12 

         things other than sports. 13 

                      But in the plan right now for in the future: 14 

         debate, National Junior Honor Society.  And it's more 15 

         academic extracurricular activities for the students.  And 16 

         yes, as a teacher and somebody with a little bit of life 17 

         experience, that is crucial to keeping those students' 18 

         interests.  They feel a sense of ownership and belonging  19 

         in -- not only in the school but something beyond the 20 

         classroom.  And it's recognition for them. 21 

                      MR. SARPOLUS:  Okay. 22 

                      MR. PRATT:  Next up we have Chris Korbel. 23 

                      MR. KORBEL:  Hello everybody, my name is Chris 24 

         Korbel and I'm a teacher at the Career Tech Center here in 25 
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         Traverse City and we service primarily eleventh and twelfth 1 

         grade students.  I don't have so much of a comment or any 2 

         anecdotal type of evidence relating to the dropout crisis.  3 

         However, I guess I have a question and I'll pose this to the 4 

         panel and to Doug because I'm a little unclear on something. 5 

                      Recently the State of Michigan released statistics 6 

         on graduation rates for every public school and public 7 

         school academy and charter school in the state of Michigan.  8 

         And according to that release one of our districts within 9 

         the Traverse -- within the TBA-ISD, the district had a 10 

         graduation rate of 84.3 percent.  Does this then naturally 11 

         infer that that district would have a dropout rate of 15.7 12 

         percent?  And I guess I'd like to kind of know what exactly 13 

         are we talking about here?  Because we're looking at several 14 

         different sets of numbers, I think. 15 

                      MR. PRATT:  Well, I spent a little bit of time 16 

         talking with the media about this, so with the panel's 17 

         permission I'll take a swing.  The new data that was 18 

         released by the State last week is based on the National 19 

         Governor's Association standards so that there is a 20 

         standardized formula across the country, as best as we fully 21 

         pull off, for how to calculate graduation rates. 22 

                      You know, for example, you go back to the much 23 

         ballyhooed John's Hopkins Dropout Factory Study that got a 24 

         lot of press last year.  Unless I'm wrong, the methodology 25 
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         there was you take who walked in on day one in ninth grade 1 

         and compare it to who walked across the stage four years 2 

         later and there's your rate, not taking into account the 3 

         dozens of things that we all know could happen between those 4 

         -- over those four years:  students leaving the district, 5 

         parents getting jobs out of state.  And certainly there were 6 

         some dropouts in there. 7 

                      These new numbers actually track the individual 8 

         students, so what's reported as the graduation rate -- I 9 

         think you said 84 percent.  That's the number of on time 10 

         graduates -- and I emphasize that because the No Child Left 11 

         Behind Act emphasizes that.  No Child Left Behind will only 12 

         count four-year, on-time graduates, so that's what that 84 13 

         percent is.  Now, the gap from there up to a hundred percent 14 

         could be three different things.  It could be off track 15 

         graduates; people who took -- students who took longer than 16 

         the four years but still got to that end goal.  And speaking 17 

         personally, I think it's a shame that these numbers on face 18 

         tend to devalue that accomplishment.  But editorial comment 19 

         aside.  The other two categories are other completers, 20 

         mainly GED's.  And the final category is an actual dropout 21 

         rate.  It's students who either were confirmed as having 22 

         dropped out or it's what's called a "missing expected 23 

         record."  It's students who they lost track of basically. 24 

                      So aside from the graduation rates, as part of the 25 
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         data that was released there was a whole separate table that 1 

         distinctly lists the dropout rate.  And so that's the 2 

         important piece, is to not just take and go from that 84 3 

         percent up to a hundred and assume that the rest of those 4 

         are dropouts.  Does that answer your question? 5 

                      MR. KORBEL:  Very clearly.  Thank you. 6 

                      MR. PRATT:  Okay.  Next up we have Dr. Jane Moore. 7 

                      DR. MOORE:  Good afternoon -- I guess, good 8 

         evening at this point, and thank you for conducting this 9 

         public hearing for us to share with you our thoughts with 10 

         regard to dropouts.  Breaking Ranks clearly puts forth the 11 

         three constructs in this order:  relationships, rigor and 12 

         relevance.  And in Traverse City Area Public Schools we are 13 

         organizing not only our high schools but also our middle 14 

         schools around those major ideas.   15 

                      We've been very fortunate to be the recipient of a 16 

         small learning communities grant with two of our three high 17 

         schools participating with four other high schools in 18 

         Michigan.  And the things on which we are working and 19 

         implementing which are under implementation this year would 20 

         be a real emphasis on personalization through mentoring 21 

         programs in addition to advisories for all students.  Our 22 

         own Board of Education has set forth funding to organize 23 

         personalization activities for all of our secondary 24 

         students.  Each school has a plan for doing such.  We are 25 
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         also tracking individual student progress over time, so not 1 

         only can we speak about graduation rates and dropouts but we 2 

         are on a regular basis monitoring the individual student 3 

         progress and adjusting instruction as necessary.   4 

                      We have moved to a trimester schedule to provide 5 

         more opportunities for our youth to meet the new high school 6 

         graduation requirements of which we are supportive, and 7 

         thankful to the governor and the State Board of Education 8 

         for putting those into place so that our students can 9 

         compete successfully in the global world. 10 

                      Some other initiatives and programs that we offer. 11 

         We do offer a truancy program which is going to reach wider 12 

         into the entire region to insure that our students do get to 13 

         school.  We have a wonderful partnership with law 14 

         enforcement and the juvenile and family courts to further 15 

         assure our students get to school.  We have also been 16 

         working collaboratively with our community partners in 17 

         developing and successfully implementing over the past four 18 

         years a youth corp program where at-risk youth at the high 19 

         school level apply for a position with our youth corp.  They 20 

         are then paid through community partners to go out and do 21 

         work within the community for which they take great pride; 22 

         such as, they have planted over 18,000 trees.  They have 23 

         developed -- I can't tell you how many hundreds of miles of 24 

         trails throughout the region and various projects like that.  25 
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   1 

                      We also have received a waiver from the Michigan 2 

         Department of Ed to offer students online learning so we can 3 

         provide more flexibility in learning, in addition to dual 4 

         enrollment that has been mentioned earlier.  We know that 5 

         research indicates that students who are more involved in 6 

         after school intramural, interscholastic activities are more 7 

         likely to do better, feel connected and stay in school.  As 8 

         a result of reorganizing our schools from K-6, 7-9 junior 9 

         highs, 10-12 high schools we are implementing a reorganized 10 

         Pre-K to fifth grade elementary school -- schools -- plural 11 

         -- 6-8 middle schools and 9-12 high schools as the result of 12 

         Michigan's increased graduation requirements and also the 13 

         need to provide better leaning opportunities for our youth, 14 

         including a comprehensive intramural program for our youth 15 

         in grades six through eight.   16 

                      Another area that I think is critical for us to 17 

         consider as we're talking about dropouts, which in most 18 

         cases occur at the secondary level -- what the research says 19 

         about early childhood education.  And I commend the Michigan 20 

         Department of Ed and the governor for putting emphasis on 21 

         the need for us to be offering everyday all day kindergarten 22 

         which we are doing in a number of schools in Traverse City; 23 

         however, have not yet been able to implement that district 24 

         wide as a result of funding.  I would love to in addition 25 
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         see fully-funded preschool programming for those who are 1 

         interested.  That is truly the beginning of getting to the 2 

         bottom of the dropout rates in Michigan. 3 

                      We also offer a program for expelled unique in 4 

         this area.  It is open to any student in our intermediate 5 

         school district as well as, of course, students who want to 6 

         come into the area from outside of our ISD region.  It's 7 

         been highly successful.  We're tracking data on all of these 8 

         programs and seeing that as a result we are making a 9 

         difference in the dropout rate.  10 

                      I'll leave you with this.  One dropout in TCAPS, 11 

         one dropout in our ISD, one dropout in Michigan, one dropout 12 

         in the state, and further one dropout in the world is way 13 

         too many and we need to work together to find a better 14 

         solution.  Thank you for your time. 15 

                      MR. KRESNAK:  Dr. Moore, I'm wondering how many pre- 16 

         K students are you serving right now and how many are you 17 

         not serving?  Do you have an idea about that? 18 

                      DR. MOORE:  It's a great question.  I can tell you 19 

         that we're serving today more than we have ever served.  I 20 

         can't give you a number. 21 

                      MR. KRESNAK:  A guess -- 22 

                      DR. MOORE:  All I can say is I've been out 23 

         visiting our schools this week.  I'm thrilled with the 24 

         number of students we have and students on waiting lists 25 
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         that we're trying to find places for.  We offer both the 1 

         Michigan School Readiness Program in addition to funded 2 

         preschool programs. 3 

                      MR. KRESNAK:  Is there a cost per student for your 4 

         pre-K program that you can break down for us? 5 

                      DR. MOORE:  Yes.  I don't have the specific costs. 6 

         I'd be more than happy to get that for you and e-mail it or 7 

         -- 8 

                      MR. KRESNAK:  That would be great. 9 

                      DR. MOORE:  I'll do that. 10 

                      MR. KRESNAK:  All right. 11 

                      UNIDENTIFIED FEMALE:  Are you talking about the 12 

         tuition fees? 13 

                      MR. KRESNAK:  Whatever it cost the district to do 14 

         one student, one pre-K student for a year, I guess. 15 

                      DR. MOORE:  I will get that information to you. 16 

         Thank you for asking. 17 

                      MR. SARPOLUS:  And, Doctor, in your tracking of 18 

         your students -- some other districts that we visited in the 19 

         past, they basically have created an IEP for each student 20 

         whether they're special ed or not.  Are you creating some 21 

         kind of individual assessment for each student then; sort of 22 

         like a contract to track these kids through all their 23 

         grades, or to just -- 24 

                      DR. MOORE:  Yes. 25 
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                      MR. SARPOLUS:  Okay. 1 

                      DR. MOORE:  And interesting, within our small 2 

         learning communities grant that is one of the areas in which 3 

         we'll be working around personalization that every student - 4 

         - even those who don't start with us in pre-K -- will have a 5 

         personalized learning plan.  And we are just in the process 6 

         of developing that at the secondary level. 7 

                      MR. SARPOLUS:  Okay.  In Genesee County they've 8 

         got it all computerized county wide so they can look at any 9 

         student at any time first grade through twelfth grade, if 10 

         you're looking at a -- if you're looking at a computerized 11 

         model. 12 

                      DR. MOORE:  Thank you.  And we do have the student 13 

         achievement data, discipline data, et cetera, that we can 14 

         look at that one student at a time within TCAPS right now. 15 

                      MR. NAEYAERT:  I had a couple questions for you, 16 

         Doctor.  Obviously, you're with -- 17 

                      DR. MOORE:  Jane, please. 18 

                      MR. NAEYAERT:  Jane, we asked Konrad Molter some 19 

         questions that maybe you could answer.  And I appreciate 20 

         your support of the new Michigan Merit Curriculum or 21 

         vocalization of that support, because we've been hearing 22 

         varying things around the state. 23 

                      DR. MOORE:  I know you have. 24 

                      MR. NAEYAERT:  When you talk about the merit 25 
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         curriculum do you have a sense of how your freshmen last 1 

         year in the district performed in terms of algebra I? 2 

                      DR. MOORE:  Yes, I do. 3 

                      MR. NAEYAERT:  And can you talk about that, how 4 

         they did and how we're going to -- or you're going to -- 5 

                      DR. MOORE:  Yes, I'd be glad to do that.  And we 6 

         have been looking at that as a result of what we see coming 7 

         out at the state and national level.  We had a range of 8 

         three to five percent of our students who failed algebra I.  9 

         I'm so proud to say that we have plans in place as they move 10 

         to tenth grade in terms of how we're going to address those 11 

         students to make sure that they just don't keep moving on 12 

         and on and on -- we have plans in place that they will 13 

         repeat algebra I if they failed it at the ninth grade level.  14 

         Also new this year we are providing algebra I to our eighth 15 

         graders and those who score with a 70 percent or higher on 16 

         our locally developed assessments will get the high school 17 

         credit for taking the course. 18 

                      MR. NAEYAERT:  So those students in eighth grade 19 

         that complete the course over 70 percent, they're going to 20 

         have the credit? 21 

                      DR. MOORE:  Right. 22 

                      MR. NAEYAERT:  Those who don't pass it in eighth 23 

         grade will then take it in ninth grade? 24 

                      DR. MOORE:  Yes. 25 
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                      MR. NAEYAERT:  Okay. 1 

                      DR. MOORE:  And in essence what we're trying to 2 

         provide is students with the opportunity to get a more 3 

         rigorous curriculum earlier and also a jump start on the 4 

         high school graduation requirements. 5 

                      MR. NAEYAERT:  Do you have -- I mean, since all 6 

         ninth graders in the district -- and three to five percent 7 

         failure is tremendous relative to what we've heard obviously 8 

         from other parts of the state, but -- 9 

                      DR. MOORE:  Right.  Compared to the 20 to 30 10 

         percent that's being reported nationally and -- 11 

                      MR. NAEYAERT:  Yes, that's what we're hearing I 12 

         think consistently 25 to 30 percent -- 13 

                      DR. MOORE:  That's what I'm hearing. 14 

                      MR. NAEYAERT:  -- failure on algebra I.  But did 15 

         you do anything different in the district in the last few 16 

         years to prepare for the freshmen of last year?  Have you 17 

         done anything differently in terms of how algebra I was 18 

         taught?  Because I assume not every student, every freshmen 19 

         took algebra I three years ago.  Unless they did?  I mean, 20 

         was there a requirement of the district that ninth graders 21 

         take algebra I prior to the passing of the Merit Curriculum? 22 

                      DR. MOORE:  Yes, all students were required in 23 

         ninth grade to have math.  And keep in mind that they -- you 24 

         may be wondering about that.  However, we had a 7-9 junior 25 
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         high; it's just now that we have a 9-12 high school.  Prior 1 

         to this year the students in seventh, eighth and ninth grade 2 

         traditionally would all take math, and especially because 3 

         ninth grade was at the junior high level.  However, our 4 

         district requirement was only two credits of math to 5 

         graduate, different than what it is today, and as a result 6 

         they all took math in ninth grade. 7 

                      MR. NAEYAERT:  Well, did they take algebra I in 8 

         ninth grade or some other math? 9 

                      DR. MOORE:  They took -- we offered both a core 10 

         plus math in ninth grade, which is an algebra I, as well as 11 

         a traditional algebra I and they had their choice of which 12 

         to take. 13 

                      MR. NAEYAERT:  Okay.  I really think that's kind 14 

         of the -- in many districts where algebra I wasn't a 15 

         requirement.  Now, they might have put 30 percent of the 16 

         students through algebra I; now they're putting a hundred 17 

         percent through and having these kind of results.  But 18 

         you've had very good results, but is it because so many more 19 

         of your students were already taking algebra I prior? 20 

                      DR. MOORE:  Yes.  And I think also because we have 21 

         a sound math curriculum.  Our math curriculum at the junior 22 

         -- well, across the district.  Another interesting point is 23 

         that in many districts you will see a gender discrepancy in 24 

         terms of male/female performance on mathematics.  Ours is 25 
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         the same. 1 

                      MR. NAEYAERT:  Would it be your professional 2 

         opinion that all children in Michigan can learn algebra I? 3 

                      DR. MOORE:  Given highly qualified teachers who 4 

         love what they're doing and can pass that enthusiasm about 5 

         learning math on to their students.  Which in Traverse City 6 

         I'm proud to say we have.  And they also believe children 7 

         will learn; that's a key point too. 8 

                      MR. NAEYAERT:  You also mentioned the waiver on 9 

         the online learning requirement.  I mean, the Michigan 10 

         requires one semester of online learning.  Is your waiver to 11 

         reduce that or to do more of -- to do more than that? 12 

                      DR. MOORE:  We are doing beyond that.  My 13 

         understanding the Michigan Department of Ed is requiring 20 14 

         hours of online experience in order for students to 15 

         graduate.  We are infusing that online requirement 16 

         throughout our curriculum so every student is going to have 17 

         well in excess of 20 hours of online learning.  Now, 18 

         certainly they have the option of taking an online course, 19 

         but we're not saying at this point in time you have to take 20 

         an online course in order to meet that requirement. 21 

                      MR. NAEYAERT:  Thank you.  22 

                      DR. CONNERS-GILMORE:  Jane, what one thing would 23 

         you want to see changed that you think would improve 24 

         graduation rates? 25 
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                      DR. MOORE:  Over time the one thing that I'm 1 

         confident will improve graduation rates would be a fully- 2 

         funded early childhood education, an all day, everyday 3 

         kindergarten throughout the state.  However, in saying that 4 

         we have students right now who didn't benefit from that, so 5 

         there needs to be a transition plan.  We implement that, but 6 

         then what do we do with this interim group who did not 7 

         benefit from that?  We need remedial and intervention 8 

         strategies in place for the group that doesn't benefit from 9 

         that. 10 

                      MR. NAEYAERT:  Since we're hitting Jane up with so 11 

         many questions we'll do one more. 12 

                      DR. CONNERS-GILMORE:  Thank you. 13 

                      MR. NAEYAERT:  When you talk about an emphasis on 14 

         early education and full-day kindergarten, there is also 15 

         bandied about Lansing discussions about making kindergarten 16 

         mandatory at age five versus age six.  It's not just full 17 

         day but full day at an earlier age.  Also discussion about 18 

         moving the compulsory attendance age from 16 to 18.  So 19 

         what's your opinion on both ends of that age scale in terms 20 

         of what the legislature should do if you could wave the 21 

         magic wand? 22 

                      DR. MOORE:  Well, it's interesting that you ask 23 

         with regard to the compulsory education for five- versus 24 

         six-year-olds, because I'm old.  I served on the state task 25 
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         force when there was discussion about moving the 1 

         kindergarten cut-off age from December 1 to maybe it should 2 

         be September whatever.  No matter what you do there's always 3 

         going to be young children and old children.  I believe we 4 

         need to get children into school at age five.  The present 5 

         requirement that they start at age six; we wanted -- want to 6 

         address the drop-out rate; we need to go to five.  On the 7 

         other end 16 versus 18 years of age for -- 8 

                      MR. NAEYAERT:  Compulsory attendance or  9 

         mandatory -- you could drop out at 16 now. 10 

                      DR. MOORE:  If we go to 18 I'd prefer to see it 11 

         tied to something else; i.e., perhaps driver's license or 12 

         other kinds of incentives versus saying you have to stay in 13 

         school until you're 18, given the fact that we have no 14 

         fully-funded preschool kindergarten programming right now.  15 

         And I also think we have to recognize that we have youth 16 

         between 16 and 18 whom we need to be more flexible in 17 

         working with in terms of how they learn and when they learn; 18 

         who may have family responsibilities, who may have their own 19 

         babies and families that they're trying to support.  So to 20 

         say 18 years old compulsory attendance, you have to be there 21 

         between 8:00 and 3:00 every single day, given our 22 

         agricultural school calendar I don't think it's realistic.  23 

         Make it 18 and make it compulsory but give options and 24 

         flexibility for learning and I think we'd hit a home run. 25 
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                      MR. NAEYAERT:  Thank you.  1 

                      DR. MOORE:  Thanks. 2 

                      MR. PRATT:  Thanks.  Next we have Ann -- I'm going 3 

         to maul it -- Valente (pronouncing)? 4 

                      MS. GWALTNEY:  Gwaltney. 5 

                      MR. PRATT:  Gwaltney.  I was so hoping I was going 6 

         to make it through a whole hearing without screwing up -- 7 

         gosh.  I'll make four more tries. 8 

                      MS. GWALTNEY:  My name is Ann Gwaltney and I'm a 9 

         teacher and I also work with scheduling in the -- at the 10 

         Frankfort High School in Frankfort/Elberta Area Schools in 11 

         Benzie County, one of two schools in Benzie County.  In the 12 

         high school we have about 180 students, 7-12, and they're 13 

         all in the same building.  We have 250 students so it's a 14 

         very small student -- we definitely have those relationships 15 

         with our students because we know them all and in many cases 16 

         we've had them from seventh grade to twelfth grade.  We know 17 

         their families, their siblings and things. 18 

                      What I wanted to talk about was dropout rates.  We 19 

         have dropout rates that appear to be really high because we 20 

         have such a small population.  And when you have such a 21 

         small population if you have two kids drop out you have a 22 

         very high percentage of dropout.  And I just wanted to say 23 

         that we use all the resources we have available.  We send 24 

         kids to Beaver Island.  We work with a career tech center.  25 
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         We use Michigan Works.  We use credit recovery classes 1 

         within our school day.  We have summer school as an option.  2 

         We offer online classes.  So we really try to do whatever we 3 

         can to keep our students in school and to get them done. 4 

                      Last year we had a student who graduated in June 5 

         who had dropped out twice.  He dropped out, came back, 6 

         dropped out, came back and he finally graduated.  And it 7 

         took a lot of pushing and pulling to get him there.  But I 8 

         think we need to have some other options for our students.  9 

         It's really difficult -- in our county we don't have an 10 

         alternative high school.  And our students can come to 11 

         Traverse City for an alternative high school, but if they 12 

         take public transportation it's $12 a day.  Bussing is an 13 

         issue because we can't bring a bus out for one or two 14 

         students; it's a 40-mile trip each way. 15 

                      So I just want there to be the identification that 16 

         alternative high schools are really pretty essential or our 17 

         alternative programs.  Funding for those would really help 18 

         us with the dropout rate. 19 

                      MR. KRESNAK:  Ms. Gwaltney, without violating his 20 

         confidentiality or anything, but could you explain the kid 21 

         that came in and out -- I mean was there issues at home?  22 

         Were there issues in learning ability?  What were the -- 23 

                      MS. GWALTNEY:  There were issues at home.  There 24 

         were also legal issues that led to him not being able to 25 
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         attend school. 1 

                      MR. KRESNAK:  Okay.  And I've heard it mentioned 2 

         before and I -- in a previous life I was a journalist and I 3 

         wrote about this program, but could you explain the Beaver 4 

         Island program? 5 

                      MS. GWALTNEY:  It's a program where the students 6 

         go and stay on Beaver Island and they do work; their 7 

         curriculum is tied to work activities.  They are set up to 8 

         deal with students who don't work well in the traditional 9 

         classroom who've had failures.  They help them get caught up 10 

         with credits at the same time they're offering job skills.  11 

         They participate in the -- right now I think they're helping 12 

         build the school -- isn't that correct? --  the new school. 13 

                      MR. KRESNAK:  Who runs that program? 14 

                      MS. GWALTNEY:  I don't know who runs that.  15 

                      DR. CONNERS-GILMORE:  I actually have more 16 

         information than you need on that.  It is actually -- Beaver 17 

         Island sits in the Char-Em ISD and they are actually with 18 

         Charlevoix Public Schools but the program is run through 19 

         Traverse Bay Area Intermediate School District.  So on any 20 

         given day you would have three entities that work together 21 

         for that.  Michigan Works in conjunction with TBAISD 22 

         actually hires the staff for that, but if there are like any 23 

         special ed needs there that comes out of TBAISD, but if 24 

         there are some other issues that might out of Charlevoix 25 
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         Public Schools.  So it's really a joint effort.  I don't 1 

         even know if anyone could find the original agreement that 2 

         laid that all out, and it works so we don't mess with it. 3 

                      MR. KRESNAK:  And how many years has that been 4 

         going on? 5 

                      DR. CONNERS-GILMORE:  I've been in the area six 6 

         years and it's been at least six years.  People who have 7 

         been in the area longer could probably tell you. 8 

                      UNIDENTIFIED MALE:  Fifteen. 9 

                      DR. CONNERS-GILMORE:  Fifteen?  Okay.  We have 10 

         more than 15. 11 

                      MR. KRESNAK:  Right.  Thank you.  12 

                      MR. PRATT:  Any questions? 13 

                      PANEL MEMBER:  Thank you very much. 14 

                      MS. GWALTNEY:  Thank you.  15 

                      MR. PRATT:  I'm out of cards. 16 

                      MR. NAEYAERT:  Well, -- I'm sorry -- I wanted to 17 

         ask -- I'm sorry.   18 

                      MR. PRATT:  Come on back. 19 

                      MR. NAEYAERT:  Obviously, a lot of the charter 20 

         schools are small as well and we've had this question come 21 

         up before.  But you don't have less than 30 freshmen? 22 

                      MS. GWALTNEY:  No, this year we have I believe 43 23 

         freshmen. 24 

                      MR. NAEYAERT:  Okay.  Because if I understand the 25 
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         department doesn't utilize the graduation rate as a hammer, 1 

         nor do they report I believe, or shouldn't report it if your 2 

         freshman class is under 30.  And so you would not fall over 3 

         that.  4 

                      MS. GWALTNEY:  No. 5 

                      MR. NAEYAERT:  Would it -- do you think that that 6 

         small school exemption or that small school asterisk, it 7 

         should be a larger number than a 30?  Do you think 50 is a 8 

         better number?  I mean, -- 9 

                      MS. GWALTNEY:  I don't know if -- 10 

                      MR. NAEYAERT:  Because then there'd be people at 11 

         60 who -- 12 

                      MS. GWALTNEY:  Exactly.  You know, the thing is 13 

         that it's just because we are small it ends up skewing the 14 

         number when we have the majority of our students, 98 percent 15 

         go to college.  You know, that's a more important percentage 16 

         I think than the one.  And we continue to try to work with 17 

         those students; we never let them go.  We keep calling them, 18 

         trying to get them back as long as we possibly can.  Would 19 

         50 be a nicer number?  Sure, it would be a nicer number.  We 20 

         barely have a class that reaches that.  But, you know, it 21 

         doesn't always tell the true story.  If a student drops out 22 

         twice it shows twice for us, but it -- you know, he comes 23 

         back and graduates and that's pretty -- that's a victory. 24 

                      MR. NAEYAERT:  Oh, I think it's a huge victory for 25 
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         that student and the current four plus, 48-month, you know, 1 

         calculation.  I mean, that student's already discounted the 2 

         first time, you know, and there's really no incentive to 3 

         bring them back and it's going to harm your graduation rate.  4 

         And I'm anxious to work with the MDE and others on looking 5 

         for exemptions or exceptions to 48-month calculation, 6 

         specifically for alternative education.  So I think every 7 

         student that's in alternative education is almost past that 8 

         window, you know, already.  And I think we're making some 9 

         progress. 10 

                      MR. PRATT:  And, Gary, that actually raises a 11 

         question that I had that -- not directly to you, Ann, but 12 

         perhaps to Marie or even Jane.  I've spent a lot of time in 13 

         talking with the media looking at these numbers -- more time 14 

         than I care to admit.  But, you know, sometimes you look 15 

         through these numbers and those alternative ed programs 16 

         really pop out when you look at the dropout numbers.  And I 17 

         think of Traverse City High School that runs an alternative 18 

         program has a reported dropout rate  of -- I think, is it 19 

         22?  I can't remember off the top of my head.  I started to 20 

         look it up, but you know, it's a double-digit number.   21 

                      Now, it's a smaller program; that inflates the 22 

         numbers dealing with at-risk students, especially when 23 

         you're trying to get funding for at-risk programs that we 24 

         know and have heard through all these hearings work, 25 
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         especially to bring students back in.  How do we countermand 1 

         that negative perception that, "Oh, my gosh.  It's got such 2 

         a high dropout rate.  It must not be doing well."  But in 3 

         fact if that program didn't exist chances are all of those 4 

         students would probably drop out.  5 

                      MR. NAEYAERT:  And I think that even if the 6 

         alternative high school has a 25 percent dropout rate -- 7 

         throw that number out -- even if that were the case -- I 8 

         mean, the 75 percent success rate is monumental.  And where 9 

         you have a district that opens an alternative school you're 10 

         serving as a disincentive to reach those at-risk kids; 11 

         you'll be inclined to not bring them back off the street 12 

         into the program because it's going to financially harm you 13 

         when the hammer comes later.  14 

                      Now, in a discussion I have at the MDE they have 15 

         requested in the last two years for an exemption from the 16 

         feds to go to a four plus calculation, core calculation rate 17 

         specifically because of alternative education.  And even 18 

         though the NGA supports a four plus and the congress 19 

         supports a four plus, and the Michigan -- I'll call them the 20 

         Michigan bureaucrats at MDE support a four plus core 21 

         graduation rate, the bureaucrats at the USDOE do not support 22 

         a four plus and they denied the request by MDE the last two 23 

         years to allow that as a four --  24 

                      So, you know, it's not the national governors that 25 
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         have to change, it's not congress that has to change, but in 1 

         the reworking of NCLB it's the bureaucrats at MDE -- or 2 

         USDOE who have to change a little bit.  Because you need 3 

         that flexibility to go to a five-year or even a six-year for 4 

         alternative education specifically so that it doesn't bring 5 

         down a traditional district because of that one program.  6 

         And I -- it's going to take kind of a -- right now three- 7 

         quarters of the world (inaudible) on it and we can't make it 8 

         happen, so we need a little more -- 9 

                      MR. SARPOLUS:  -- testimony in Macomb County 10 

         they're looking to create a whole separate school district 11 

         just for alternative kids, so they're counted within that 12 

         district -- 13 

                      MR. NAEYAERT:  Just as the district. 14 

                      MR. SARPOLUS:  Right.  Right. 15 

                      MS. GWALTNEY:  It's an interesting solution. 16 

                      MR. SARPOLUS:  Solution.  So there's no kids in 17 

         the other districts that have -- need to go plus four plus. 18 

                      MR. NAEYAERT:  But a traditional district -- and 19 

         if that's what Traverse City has done, then -- I mean, if 20 

         traditional district has opened an alternative program, you 21 

         know, that counts against the district's overall graduation 22 

         rate and it's going to come back to bite you.  And it's a 23 

         problem, because those are success stories; they're not 24 

         failures. 25 
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                      MS. GWALTNEY:  And the objective is graduation.  1 

         That's the -- 2 

                      PANEL MEMBER:  Absolutely. 3 

                      DR. CONNERS-GILMORE:  And part it -- and I'm more 4 

         familiar with the alternative high school here in Traverse 5 

         City and if -- you know, I don't know.  I believe something 6 

         needs to be done.  There needs to be some -- we need to 7 

         change the parameters a little bit, because they actually 8 

         take the kids who are for the most part -- not all the kids, 9 

         but for the most part who have been struggling and have not 10 

         been as successful as they could be for a variety of reasons 11 

         in a more traditional high school.  And these kids and the 12 

         teachers and the staff work incredibly hard for those kids 13 

         to graduate.   14 

                      You only have to go to the graduation ceremony one 15 

         year; it's probably the most moving graduation you'll ever 16 

         go to.  And sometimes it takes them more than one try.  I 17 

         mean, you know, they are here, they leave, they come back; 18 

         they leave, they come back.  And they're finally successful 19 

         and there should be something different.  I don't know what 20 

         the specifics would be because, you know, when you open your 21 

         doors and you set up a building and say, "Come on.  We'd 22 

         like the -- we want to have more difficult educational task, 23 

         so please send us the kids who are struggling" and then you 24 

         get dinged for it, that seems just really unfair. 25 
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                      MR. PRATT:  Just to -- I did eventually find the 1 

         numbers in this thing.  The graduation -- the dropout rate 2 

         specifically for Traverse City Central High School is 3.87 3 

         percent.  For West Senior High School it's 1.06, but, you 4 

         know, the Traverse City High School with the alternative 5 

         program is 31.58 and that really does -- you know, that 6 

         impacts the overall district dropout number unfairly I 7 

         think, but -- 8 

                      MR. NAEYAERT:  And a lot of these -- I mean, these 9 

         kids are -- they're getting the merit curriculum -- I mean, they're  10 

         getting the rigor; they just didn't do it in that 48 month when the  11 

         chip in their neck blew up.  So that's something that can be 12 

         fixed, but I -- and I think -- 13 

                      MR. SARPOLUS:  -- a lot of pressure. 14 

                      MR. NAEYAERT:  Yes. 15 

                      MR. PRATT:  Comment? Sure. 16 

                      DR. MOORE:  Just a comment with regard to Traverse 17 

         City High School.  When you look at that, at either the 18 

         graduation or the dropout rate in talking about the students 19 

         who come and go who are on the four plus plan; at Traverse 20 

         City High School it's to be expected that there are going to 21 

         be a number of students who may have relationships or be 22 

         single parents with babies who literally go out of Michigan, 23 

         go out of state, but a year, a year and a half later they 24 



 62

         come back.  So many of these students are on that off track, 1 

         four-year graduation plan. And based on the data you just 2 

         referenced 57 students graduated; of those 13 were on track 3 

         and did the four-year plan, if you will.  4 

                      However, there's no accounting for the 24 who are 5 

         off track.  And they will graduate; however, the way the 6 

         data is being calculated it's -- so what?  And for our state 7 

         of Michigan I think it's critical.  There are 24 other youth 8 

         that will graduate, will have success, could  be -- the 9 

         Traverse City High School could have been the turn-around 10 

         program and made the difference in their life and so what 11 

         for the state. 12 

                      MR. PRATT:  Thank you, Jane.  Like I said I'm out of  13 

         cards.  Anybody else who'd like to take a turn at the mike, have  14 

         something hey want to share?  Okay.  And we have Mary Beth Stein. 15 

                      MS. STEIN:  From Traverse City Schools.  I'd just 16 

         like to ask you to take something back to the legislature 17 

         for me as a parent, as a community member.  I'm also a 18 

         employee of the school district.  At what point will we get 19 

         off this Proposal A and have equity funding?  I don't 20 

         understand how something that we voted on 30 years ago can 21 

         still have implications now; that we're still trying to 22 

         justify equal funding for students in Northern Michigan 23 

         versus Southern, Oakland County, Southeast Michigan.  We're 24 
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         held to the same rigors.  We're held to the same standards, 1 

         same graduation requirements, the same graduation 2 

         calculations and so we should be getting the same funding.  3 

         That's the message I would like you to take back to the 4 

         legislature. 5 

                      MR. PRATT:  It'll be in the transcript. 6 

                      MR. NAEYAERT:  I wanted to comment because I'm 7 

         still a new kid to the policy area, but my understanding is 8 

         under -- you guys call it "2X"; right? 9 

                      MR. SARPOLUS:  2X, yes. 10 

                      MR. NAEYAERT:  Under the big 2X, you know, model 11 

         of funding from the legislature now in its second big year 12 

         that we are on track to have absolute parity in funding 13 

         sometime, you know, 35, 45 years from now. 14 

                      MS. STEIN:  Maybe -- 15 

                      MR. NAEYAERT:  We are on a slow and steady path 16 

         for equity. 17 

                      MS. STEIN:  Maybe we could hold them to four 18 

         years. 19 

                      MR. NAEYAERT:  Well, we are two years into a 40- 20 

         year plan. 21 

                      DR. CONNERS-GILMORE:  Right, and that's what 22 

         happened after we voted on Proposal A and how many years ago 23 

         was that?  24 

                      MR. NAEYAERT:  Well, because we know legislators 25 
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         turn over from term limits, I'm sure that the new kids 40 1 

         years from now will adhere to that. 2 

                      MR. SARPOLUS:  The difficulty is Proposal A never 3 

         mentions the word "education" in it.  It is a property tax 4 

         proposal; it does not refer to education at all in the 5 

         language; that's the difficulty.  Number two, from a policy 6 

         standpoint more and more schools are going out of formula.  7 

         And the problem is it's the very small schools that don't 8 

         have a tax base.  So you're caught now where you want to go 9 

         and all these other schools up North and in the Thumb who 10 

         have no tax base.  And so we're -- 11 

                      MS. STEIN:  Well, I understand all that, but then 12 

         it needs to be fixed so that we -- 13 

                      MR. SARPOLUS:  Yeah, that's not going to happen 14 

         until the legislature admits that we have a financial crisis 15 

         in the state.   16 

                      MR. NAEYAERT:  What is the foundation allowance 17 

         for Traverse City? 18 

                      DR. CONNERS-GILMORE:  We're the lowest, whatever - 19 

         - 20 

                      MR. NAEYAERT:  Seventy-two? 21 

                      MR. PRATT:  Okay.  Anybody else?   22 

                      (No verbal response) 23 

                      MR. PRATT:  Okay.  I will turn then to our 24 

         distinguished panel for some closing comment -- other than 25 
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         you, Ed.  Now, but for some closing comments, just some 1 

         thoughts about what you've heard today and now that several 2 

         of us have been through five or six of these -- six of these 3 

         now, some of the themes you've been hearing and, you know, 4 

         what you're taking away from this whole process.  And I will 5 

         start with Jack. 6 

                      MR. KRESNAK:  All right.  As long as I'm here.  I 7 

         do want to congratulate Traverse City Area Schools for doing 8 

         a great job with our foundation allowance and you seem to 9 

         have figured out ways to connect the kids to not only 10 

         responsible caring adults but to peer mentors, older kids in 11 

         school.  That seems to be a key to a lot of kids' successes 12 

         being -- having a feeling of connectivity to their schools.  13 

         I appreciate Dr. Moore's comments about early childhood 14 

         education.  I think this is a critical period of life.  And 15 

         it may not be this full-day kindergarten is the answer, 16 

         because a lot of the learning abilities take place in zero 17 

         to three and there has to be kind of a secondary look at 18 

         helping those at-risk populations.  And I'm talking about 19 

         not so much racial differences but socioeconomic 20 

         differences.   21 

                      It's a fairly well-known fact that poverty is 22 

         poison for children's brains.  And we need to figure out 23 

         ways to reach those low income families to give those kids 24 

         an opportunity to organize their brains, to expose them to 25 
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         more words.  There's something like -- and I forget the 1 

         numbers exactly, but middle class children are exposed to 2 

         12,000, 20,000 words more than their lower income 3 

         counterparts just because of their socioeconomic status.  So 4 

         I think we need look at ways to really reach those kids 5 

         early on. 6 

                      I was looking through the statistics provided by 7 

         the MEA on the second page of this release and I know that 8 

         these school populations are really low and that kind of 9 

         skewers a lot of the percentages, but what struck me is that 10 

         the highest dropout rate appears to be in Mancelona which is 11 

         where my family is from.  And it's kind of disturbing to me.  12 

         And obviously I don't believe there's anyone from Mancelona 13 

         here today to talk about what's going on there.  But there 14 

         is a wide variance and a lot of it depends on how seriously 15 

         school districts and the ISD's really, you know, look at 16 

         this problem as a holistic approach.  There's no one 17 

         solution.  There takes a lot of solutions, a lot of 18 

         different creative and innovative ways, as you all have 19 

         done.  And thank you for all of your good ideas.  I 20 

         appreciate that.  21 

                      MR. SARPOLUS:  I echo that.  22 

                      MR. PRATT:  Sir? 23 

                      MR. SARPOLUS:  I echo that.  And one of the things 24 

         I find very interesting is -- that's not borne out in other 25 
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         parts of the state is that you do have the smallness; you're 1 

         stressing the smallness where you can in the classroom, in 2 

         the school setting.  You do push the relevance and 3 

         relationships.  The other thing that really stuck out to me 4 

         is it's a sense of community here.  And I mean that from the 5 

         administrators down to the staff.  In most school districts 6 

         that we've seen or I've worked with in the past 80 percent 7 

         of the teachers do not live in the district or even close to 8 

         the district, so there is no sense of community.  But I 9 

         think the one thing I see here is the fact that you actually 10 

         have a community.   11 

                      I remember the first principal that testified 12 

         talked about that you're able to do things within the school 13 

         to build a mentoring.  And many districts we work in they 14 

         can't depend on the school norm because the teachers are 15 

         driving a hour to an hour and a half to get home.  So I 16 

         think the one thing to note here is the relationships have 17 

         to be not only inter-building but inter-community.  And I 18 

         will guarantee you some of the things you see in Mancelona 19 

         has to do with socioeconomics or rural and I think that's 20 

         something that really stresses here.  You have sort of a -- 21 

         in Traverse City you have a community, you have some 22 

         dependence, you're working together and I think that -- to 23 

         stress that. 24 

                      The one caution I do have is in your community of 25 
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         Traverse City the one thing that we're seeing in other areas 1 

         that you may not hear is how many languages are you teaching 2 

         in your school?  I mean, how many kids?  Like in Detroit 3 

         they have like 46 languages.  Farmington Hills they have 4 

         like 38 languages that they're confronted with.  What is 5 

         your language barriers here in your school system? 6 

                      DR. MOORE:  We teach the three standard 7 

         languages:  French, German and Spanish.  However, through 8 

         Michigan Virtual High School we are offering Japanese, 9 

         Chinese, Mandarin Chinese; students are taking -- 10 

                      MR. SARPOLUS:  Okay.  What I'm trying -- but how 11 

         many language -- what's the language -- the English language 12 

         -- 13 

                      MR. NAEYAERT:  How many languages do your students 14 

         speak? 15 

                      DR. MOORE:  I would say about 20. 16 

                      MR. SARPOLUS:  Twenty?   17 

                      MR. NAEYAERT:  And does that include UP? 18 

                      DR. MOORE:  No, 21. 19 

                      MR. PRATT:  Are we going to strike that from 20 

         the record when we send this up north? 21 

                      MR. SARPOLUS:  Yeah, that's our next stop.  I'm 22 

         going to say the sense of community is what really stuck out 23 

         with me here listening to both the academy and the 24 

         traditional, they're sort of a common community basis here 25 
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         of working together and teaching and the smallness I think 1 

         was very important. 2 

                      MR. PRATT:  Marie? 3 

                      DR. CONNERS-GILMORE:  I am -- Traverse Bay Area 4 

         Intermediate School District we have -- we serve 16 local 5 

         schools and four charter schools.  And they're all unique.  6 

         And we have some very small schools and Traverse City is our 7 

         -- is the largest school within our district.  And I would 8 

         have to say that one of the things that happens is 9 

         superintendents of all of those schools come together and 10 

         they all are obligated to look after their own district, but 11 

         they actually look after each other's too.  They really try 12 

         and work very closely together to make sure that everybody's 13 

         pulled up every -- no one is left out; that we're not trying 14 

         to do something for one district at the expense of another 15 

         district.  And I would have to say that that's a very strong 16 

         collaborative effort and -- my feeling.  And I think that 17 

         that helps, because we try to say, "Okay.  There's a problem 18 

         over here.  What can we do about that?"   19 

                      You know, when -- I don't know if you can stress 20 

         the socioeconomic issue enough.  We have something here in 21 

         the greater Traverse City area.  It's the Poverty Reduction 22 

         Initiative and that is -- we are really trying to help 23 

         families move out of that -- move out of poverty, because it 24 

         impacts everything.  It just impacts everything.  You know, 25 
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         they often -- we have single parent homes, parents working 1 

         two, three, four jobs.  They just don't have energy and time 2 

         left over at the end of the day to read to their 3 

         preschoolers, to take them on trips to -- you know, to go 4 

         see something different.  They don't have an awful lot of 5 

         time.   6 

                      The wages up here are very different than the 7 

         wages downstate.  You know, kids -- families don't have 8 

         health insurance, so when your kids get sick they're out of 9 

         school longer.  When you talk about seat time; if you're out 10 

         of school more because you can't go to the doctor and you 11 

         can't get the medicine that you need, you are going to be 12 

         missing some things.  When parents don't have enough money 13 

         they tend to move around more, because when they can't pay 14 

         their rent here they try and find another place.  So they're 15 

         often moving around, sometimes within school district -- 16 

         within one school district, maybe Traverse City that's 17 

         larger, but moving around a lot kids -- they miss an awful 18 

         lot of information.  We do not -- and maybe this is one of 19 

         those things we could do.  Common pacing guides so that all 20 

         schools cover the same material relatively -- in a similar 21 

         fashion at the same period of time, so that if you go from 22 

         Mancelona to Kalkaska and you're in third grade and it's 23 

         March you don't miss a whole bunch of information because it 24 

         was covered in November in Kalkaska, you know. 25 
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                      So those sorts of things I think are important.  I 1 

         think we need to think about that.  I think all districts 2 

         do, but I think the State needs to actually think about some 3 

         of that, particularly as it relates to what can we do with 4 

         helping kids when they're in school, be in school and come 5 

         to school ready to learn.  I think the whole idea of 6 

         preschool -- fully-funding preschool, fully-funded -- you 7 

         know, is necessary.  It's necessary.  That's it. 8 

                      MR. PRATT:  Gary? 9 

                      MR. NAEYAERT:  This lady has a question. 10 

                      MR. PRATT:  Oh, sure. 11 

                      MS. BOYLAN:  I just -- you know, Dr. Moore, you 12 

         know, I'm privileged to be a district where kids are 13 

         (inaudible).  You spoke about early childhood (inaudible) 14 

         and the reasons are the same.  I am a library parapro. 15 

                      MR. PRATT:  Can I ask you to come to the mike so 16 

         we can get this -- thanks.   17 

                      MS. BOYLAN:  Sorry. 18 

                      MR. PRATT:  That's okay. 19 

                      MS. BOYLAN:  Connie Boylan, Traverse City Public 20 

         Schools.  And speaking about that.  When you're talking 21 

         about parents not having time to read.  Sitting in a library 22 

         we see every child come through our -- and there's children 23 

         who don't even know Mother Goose anymore.  They have no idea 24 

         about the fairy tales.  People are working two and three 25 
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         jobs; there is no time at home any longer and  the -- and to 1 

         have the fully-funded preschool and kindergarten would be 2 

         huge, because it's a shame to see children sit there -- and 3 

         you know the ones, because they're sitting there, they're 4 

         doing the little rhymes with you.  They have -- and the 5 

         other kids are just totally clueless.  Those are the things 6 

         every one of my children who went through this school system 7 

         were able to have.   8 

                      And I have been a single mother/parent for many 9 

         years, but I went home at night and I did that.  We have 10 

         people now that just -- that's not happening and the 11 

         children are the ones who are suffering.  So it is very 12 

         important to get that early childhood funded.  That's -- I 13 

         think that will -- literacy begins when they're very young 14 

         and they don't drop out only when they become -- that starts 15 

         clear down when they're in the elementary. 16 

                      PANEL MEMBER:  Thank you.  17 

                      MR. PRATT:  Gary. 18 

                      MR. NAEYAERT:  I wanted to thank the people in the 19 

         audience, some that had to leave already, but the ones that 20 

         here who gave up their time to be here and share your 21 

         comments with us.  As you are likely to know, this is the 22 

         sixth stop of the ten hearings that are being hosted across 23 

         the state and our organization's very pleased to partner 24 

         with the MEA and participate in these hearings.  I hope you 25 
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         all didn't think when this hearing was scheduled for 1 

         Traverse City is that there was a target on your backs; that 2 

         we were coming here because something was going wrong.  I 3 

         think the reality is that there are many things going right 4 

         in this area and there's probably more from this hearing in 5 

         the transcripts that are going to send messages to other 6 

         parts of the state where there are more significant 7 

         challenges.  Your largest high school in this entire area 8 

         has a one percent dropout rate, and so that's reason for 9 

         applause and certainly not a crisis.   10 

                      There are issues to be dealt with and we 11 

         appreciate your agreement that what we really need is high 12 

         expectations.  You're proving in this area of the state that 13 

         you've had high academic expectations for all children 14 

         regardless of their background and they can still succeed if 15 

         we can learn to teach them properly.  16 

                      The other thing that I think is very strong  17 

         here -- it's been mentioned but I think we're seeing this as 18 

         a theme -- significant and strong adult relationships for 19 

         our children, you know, are, if not one of the key successes 20 

         the key to success.  And if every student in their K-12 21 

         experience would have the active interest of a caring adult, 22 

         even one through that K-12 experience, that could be enough 23 

         to carry them through and bring them all the way to the 24 

         finish line. 25 
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                      I did want to comment on the graduation rate 1 

         again, only to say that I think it's a huge improvement as a 2 

         national issue for us to have a common methodology for 3 

         establishing graduation rates, because the graduation rate 4 

         in Michigan is not the same as in Idaho and there's no way 5 

         of making state-by-state comparisons.  So this common 6 

         methodology is a good one; we just have an over-bureaucratic 7 

         implementation of it that needs to be reined back a little 8 

         bit to give us the flexibility that we need to recognize the 9 

         value of a four plus among some student groups.   10 

                      But we are very pleased at the way that these 11 

         hearings have gone, the quality of information we've been 12 

         getting.  You all should feel good about what you're doing 13 

         regardless of whether you're doing it at less or more than 14 

         the average foundation allowance.  There are good things 15 

         happening in this area and I think that you're a model for 16 

         much of the rest of the state and we hope that that -- that 17 

         you feel as good about yourselves as you should.  But keep 18 

         working to get to that zero dropout number. 19 

                      MR. SARPOLUS:  The Michigan Education Association 20 

         who I work for wants thank you too for what you're doing 21 

         because we -- earlier this spring we interviewed -- only 500 22 

         people were considered dropouts or considering dropouts and 23 

         all of the kids, 80 percent of the kids said their primary 24 

         reason to drop out is no one talks to them, tells them why 25 
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         they're in school; what's the relevance?  None of them 1 

         admitted that they couldn't handle the class -- well, a 2 

         certain percentage, but the bulk of them says is "we take 3 

         responsibility to prepare, but you need to take 4 

         responsibility for not telling us why we're here."  And that 5 

         was one of the amazing things is these kids were basically 6 

         saying, "We don't know why we're in the classroom.  Tell us, 7 

         either the teacher or parent, somebody."  And you've 8 

         demonstrated that is what you're doing here in and your 9 

         methods here, and that's why you have a low dropout rate.  10 

         One of the reasons. 11 

                      MR. PRATT:  I want to thank the panel and I want 12 

         to thank everyone who participated today and echo what our 13 

         panel has said.  There's a lot of great things going on here 14 

         that this testimony will bring back.  You know, as I've been 15 

         talking with folks who said, "Why are we doing this here?  16 

         You know, there isn't a crisis here."  I did the math first 17 

         off, the statistics and it's about 166 students within the 18 

         area of the Traverse Bay IDS who dropped out last year.  And 19 

         for those 166 kids this is important; it's important to find 20 

         out how to get them re-engaged.  It's important to make sure 21 

         that next year we don't lose another 166, for their sake and 22 

         for the sake of our communities and our economy.  So I want 23 

         to thank all of you for coming today.  I want to thank 24 

         everybody for, you know, giving the input that you've given.  25 
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   1 

                      Again, we're going to take all this, transcribe it 2 

         and give it to the legislature and the governor at the 3 

         October 20th Dropout Prevention Leadership Summit that's 4 

         going to be held in Lansing.  We're also going to be 5 

         providing all these ideas to the attendees at that summit 6 

         who are from broader community groups bringing parents and 7 

         educators and students, law enforcement, business  leaders - 8 

         - all to the table to find out how to tackle this problem at 9 

         the community level.  Because I think we can all agree the 10 

         more we can get -- we need more resources.  We need more 11 

         tools from Lansing, from our legislators, the real solution 12 

         to getting students across that stage after four or five, 13 

         six years, whatever it takes.  That solution's going to come 14 

         here at the community level. 15 

                      MR. SARPOLUS:  And we at the MEA and our web page, 16 

         we do have a blog that you can continue to provide 17 

         information and testimony.  We've had testimony from as far 18 

         as Texas, people hearing about these hearings and actually 19 

         wanted to contribute.  So as you're talking to other people, 20 

         if you have other input, please go to our website and please 21 

         enter into the blog, submit information ongoing, because we 22 

         want to hear from you. 23 

                      MR. PRATT:  And that web address is:  24 

         www.mea.org/dropouts.  Anyone can go and provide testimony 25 
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         online if you know people who couldn't make it here today 1 

         who have a story they would like to tell.  So with that, 2 

         thank you to everybody and have a safe and as dry as 3 

         possible drive home.  Have a good evening. 4 

                      (Hearing concluded) 5 
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